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BEFORE THE OIL AND GAS CONSERVATION COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF COLORADO 5
26-10

IN THE MATTER OF THE PROMULGATION OF )
FIELD RULES TO GOVERN THE SPACING AND % CAUSE NO. 26
)

DENSITY OF OIL AND GAS WELLS IN THE
ADENA FIEID, MORGAN COUNTY, COLORADO

The above-entitled cause came on regularly
for hearing before the Commission on Thursday, June &,
1954, at the how of 10:00 a.m., at Room 704, State ‘
Capitol Annex, 14th Avenue and Sherman Street, D,emferh :

Colorado.
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CBAIRMAN DOWNING: We have here two matters, plus
- minutes. If there 1is no objection, the minutes will be
appr ov 6d.

You all have the next hearing, Cause No. 26.
Application for two exceptions.s I understand thaf will
not take very long. Are you ready in that matter, No. 26%

First, Madesme Secretary, have the notices of the
meeting been gilven? |

MISS HOGSETT: ©Notice has been sent by Mr. Stockmar.
He will file waivers. |

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Notlce has been aent to everyone
under the statute and regulations? You have those walvers?

MR. STOCKMAR: Yes, sir.
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CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Are they satisfa.ctbry::‘

MISS HOGSETT: I am sure they 'aré;{

CHATRMAN DOWNING: It is hereby declared that service
1s satisfactory and complete. |

MR. STOCKMAR: We have these waivers which have been
obtained from each of the interested parties.

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: We -will determine. the matter., Who
all are present?

MR. STOCKMAR: I am appearing for the Unlted States
Smelting, Refinlng end Mining Company, the App]i caent.,

MR, RAYMOND J. GENGLER: I am appearing ‘on behalf of
Mr. W. H. Gaddis and Franklin W. Baumgartner.

¥R. STOCKMAR: Mr. Tom Garber, who will appear as &
witness for the U.S. Smelting, Refining and Mining Company.

GHAT RVAN DOWNING: Are you sll appearing in favor of it,
or is there some appearing against the applicatim?

MR. GENGLER: Gaddls and Baumgartner are appearing
against it.

CHAIRMAN DONNING: All right. Proceed.

MR. STOCKMAR: Mr. Howard Glenn is also appearing.
T don't know what position.

MR. GIENN: I am for 1t, because I happen to be the
mineral owner. |

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Have we got an extra copy of the
petition?
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MISS HOGSETT: I think so.

CHATRMAN DOWNING: As I understand it, it 1s a petition
for two exceptions to the spacing order 1n Adena.

MR. STOCKMAR: Yes, sir. Those exceptions are asked
for in the Southeast Quarter of Section Thirty-two, T2 North,
R 57 W.

CHATIRMAN DOWNING: All right, now. How many witnesses
have you? ‘

MR. STOCKMAR: I have one witness, sir.

CHATRMAN DOWNNING: One?
MR. STOCKMAR: Yes. T would 1ike to call Mr. Garber.

THOMAS B. GARBER,
called as & witness in behalf of the Applicant, the United
States Smeltirg, Refining and Mining Company, having been
- first duly sworn, upon his oath testified as follows:
- DIRECT EXAMINATION,
BY MR. STOCKMAR:

Q@ Will you state your name for the record, pleasse?®

A Thomaes B. Garber.

Q@ Would you state your educational background?

A Educational background: graduated from the
University of Oklahoma with a degree in petroleum engineer-
ing.

CHATRMAN DOWNING: Unless there is objection, we will




assume the witness 1s qualified.
MR. STOCKMAR: Is there any objection?

I would like to state that the -'_witne.ss is quali-
fied by the Texas Reilroad Commission and Oldahoma Railroad
Commigsion in similar matters. i

Q Mr. Garber, have you examined representative log
end other amlysis with respect to the "J% Sand in the
Adena field? o

A Yes, I have. ‘

Q@ If you please, let us limit all our remarks to the

"J" Sand in this particular matter. Representing the " = "~ = |
Applicant here, are you a member of the Engineering and o
Geographic Committees of the Adema field?
A T am.
Q Have you worked on the factual data Information
which was submitted in the May & hearing of the Adena field?
A I have.
Q You were present at that hearing?
A Yes, sir.
Q And acqualnted with the factual data presented?
A Yes, 4dr.
@ Do you recall testimony at that hearing with respect
to the nature of this particulear reservoir? ‘ |
A T do.
Q Would you state briefly wkat 1t was?
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A You mean from a geologlcal sense, or from the--

Q@ Prom a reservolr viewpoint.

A Prom a reservoir viewpoint—1in the Vfactual data
presented by the Engineering Commit_teé‘ from and for the
Adena Field, it was determined that the reservoir had a
gas cap and the gas-oll contact was presented in that
testimony. And it was also stated that the reservoir had
a gas cap drive and & solution gas drive mechanism.

& Is tmt your oplnion, also?

A That is correcte.

Q@ From your study of the factual data, do you recall
the testimony in the May 6 hearing conc erming the results
of excessive production particularly in the lands underlined
by the gas cap area?

A One of the points in forming the Engineering Gom-
mit tee, and accumulating all this factual date for control
production rcr cbserved production -was‘t'o ma intain a _{qu‘essure
differential from the gas cap to prevent encroachmenf of oil
into the gas cap, migratlon eof oil 1_r_‘1to, the gas cap zone by
the depleting of that higher pressﬁre z;oné.

Q@ Also, was it to conserve the waste gas and the
dissipation of reservoir energy from the gas cap?

A That-1s correct.

Q 4nd that is your opinion, also?%

A Yes, sir.
Q

What was the Committee's conclusion and recommendation
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to the Commission with respect to a limitation on production?

A Well, the Committee recommendsd for a six-month
pericd that prédnction be curtailed to;iaﬁ barrels a day
per well, with a limit--gas 1imit of 150,000 cubic feet
per well, which would result in a méximum gas-01l ratiojof
1200 to cne. | )

Q In your opinion should that on a trial basis lena .
itself to the conservation pf reservpif énergy in the gas
cap? |

A It should. It was the opinion;of all;the operators
that agreed to the factual dapa pfeéented-ih that hearing.

Q Under the Commlittee's recommendation, an operator

could still praiuce the maxiﬁum produwetim of 125 barrels
a day from a well which had a gas-oil‘ratio of 1200 to 1%

A That is correct.

@ I believe the records of the Commission, without
further testimony here, will show that Applicant's Glenn # 1
well was completed in the seufbeast qua rter-- southeast guar-
ter of Section 32 on a northwest location as one of the
pioneer wells in this partlcular part of the field. And
that was long prior to the establishment of any spacing
order or specification as to locations of the wells.

That well, as indicated in the factual data, was
originally completed with & gas-oil ratio of approximately

8,000 to 1. In accordance with practical operating practices,

b

the Applicant here shut the well in, pending a work-over ard
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recompletion. The records of the Commiss;on will also show
tkat that work-over has been completed, aq&;ﬁhat the gas=-0il
ratio ﬁas been successfully roduw 6d toyapﬁfoximately 860 to
1. That was accomplished by sementing off ﬁhﬁ gas cap area
and by gradual perforations beginning at thﬁ‘bottom bel ow
the productive zone, coming up until two feet of the oil
sand had been perforated. ' )

Q@ Mr. Garber, even though you consider the recomple=-
tion job to be completely successful, dees the gas-oll
ratio of 860 to 1 indicate that the well produced same gas’
cap material? '

4 Yes, it does. In the factual data presented, the
solution gas-oil ratio of the reservoir was below 600.

Q Then, for wells in the same area underlain by the
gas cap, a well with a lower gas-oll ratio than thils Glenn
No. 1 indicates that the well is producing more efficiently
and with less dissipation of reservoir energy from the gas
cap? '

A That 1s correct.

@11A11 other considerations being qqual, if you had
your choice of two locations from timt, you would select
the location where the lower gas-oil ratio was to be obtained?

A That 1s correct. |

Q Specifically, with respect to the two forty-acre

tracts which we are concerned with here, what recommendation
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have you mde to your employers W th respect to the feasl-
bility of drilling on a northwest as opposed to a southeast
location? N

A In the interest of conservatlon, and 1n the interest
of maximum efficlent recovery of oil from the reservoir, we
recommended the locations be drilled iIn the northwest quarter.

Q@ You expect a lower gas-oll ratio well to be campleted
there?

A Yes. As shown on the structural map that we present,
wells are expocted to penetrate the sand below the gas-oil
contact which has been established at minus 10-660,

Q@ Speaking generally again, what was the Engineering
Committee's cm clusion on a fisld-wide basis with respect
to the effects of the controlled conservation of the gas-
cap energy?

A Well, 1t is thought that by controlling the gas cap
there and allowing the gas cap to expand down structure and
across & grading there that it will move the oll ahead of
it or with 1%, thereby increasing the oll recovery from the
reservolr.

@ I think the factual data Indicates that an expected
increase on a field-wide basis 18 between 25 and 35 percente.

A That is under competetive operatims there, and can
be Increased.

@ Disregarding the possibility of unitization?

A That is correct.




- -V | ) B | :

@ Then, I gather that wells which are lower structurally
will produce oil displaced from up-structure lands by the
expanding gas cap?

A The indications are that 15 correct.

@ Do I also understand that the wells located higher
structurally will sooner have an increased gas-oll ratioe?

A That is correct.

Q@ Than wells located down structure?

A As the gas cap expands down structure, the entire
reservolr is soon overlain by the gas cap and as the gas
cap expands down structure, the wells closer to the gas
cap will go into gas firsty

' Q@ And eventually will becoms a gas well?

A That 1s corrsct.

Q W;th respect specificallj to the southeast quarter
of Section 32, is 1t your opinion that the expanding gﬁﬁ
cap will push substantial quantitiea of oil from your lands
to the northwest which will be produced from wells on lands
to the narth of you? |

A The expanding gas cap in conjunction with the gravity
drainage and the pressure differential domn structure toward
the northwest will cause drainage in that direction.

Q@ Even without thﬁ benefits of an expandling gas cap,
do you consider there is a strong probability that wells

® on lands to the north of this particular 40 are and have been
end will continue to drain the lands?

A That 1is correct.

Q Without respect to the benefits of expansion, what
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reasons do you have for that? '

A The structure itself dips to tﬁé West, and with the
permeability, good permeabilities and relative permeabll-
ities to give us an oll in the reservolr without ths benefit
of gas cap encroachment, oil will probably tend %o migrate
in that direction regardless. - i

Q@ I seeo from the isopach map attacéed to the factuél
data productia that there is a substantial pressure dif-
ferential in existence a4t thls time?

A That is correct. The isopach map prepared by the
Adena Engineering Committee and with all the wells shown
in the field, shows a distinct pressure gradient to the
west from the high pressure on the east side of apprbxi-
mately 1,530 pounds to a lower of approximately 1,430 pounds
on the west, showing a distinct pressure dififerential across
the reservolr on the gas cap to the lower flank well.

Q Mr. Garber, in your opinion, will--again with
respoct to the northeast corner or northeast guarter of
Section 32--will a well drilled by your cuupany on a south-
east location give your company offset and drainage with
reospect to the wells to the north?

A No, it will not. The gas cap drive mechanlam 1s
from the esast and the wells located closer to the eastward
poundary of the field will not bensfit as well as the well
located closer to the other side.

Q@ As well as being & substantial distance from his =

lease 1line?
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Q@ Do you consider—-from the testimony that you are

A That is correct.

being and will continue to be drained, and your statement
that you are not down on this southeast location for the
benefits of offsetting drainage--4o you consider tiat
equitable and reascnable?

A I certainly do not.

Q Then, 1s 1t your opinion that both the interests
of cnaervation and the protectioﬁ of the respective rights
of both ﬁorking interest snd underlying royalty owners
require that tlese exceptlons be granted?

A That 1s definitely so.

Q@ Referring to the maps which show the locations of
the wells, here, either of them, and the Commissim's
records generally, we find that two of the wells drilled
on this particular socutheast quarter--the only two other
wells drilled on the quarter to the west, all of the wells
drilled on the half section directly south--the only well
drilled on the northwest of sectlon 4 to the southeast--
the only productive well drilled on the south of Section 33 .
to the east and the only well in the nor thwest guarter of
Section 33 to the northwest, have been ﬁfilled on north;-
west locations, either as exceptlons permitted in the ori--
ginal spacing orders, or as exceptions subsequently grant ed
on applying here, and evidence here. That leaves primarily

to the d&ipsetion to the north, only, in which we have the




established spacing. And it seems that thoese are the off
pattern wells with respect to this particular area. I
understand that the "0il Conservation Act"™ may not be
primarily a correlative rights statute. Aﬁd there has besen
cons id erable discussion and som litigation over that par-
tlcular point.

Whatever the general intentim of the Act may be,
the conclusion is lnescapable that correlative rights must
be considersd with respect to the specific situaﬁions
covered by Section 6(c) of this Act. -That is the section
which permits such exceptions %o therspééing orders as may
be reasonably necessary if, and I quote:

"the requirement to drill the well at the
authorized location on the unit would bs
inequitable or unreasonabla,"

The use of those words "inequitable or unrsasonable'
in this Act to me clearly demmstrates 1agislativa intent
that with at least with respect to this particular situa-
tion that appropriate consideration must be given to cor-
relative rights,.

Now the correlative rights problem has several
viewpoints. One, from the operatar-working-interest owners
viewpolnt, and another from the underlying royalty and under-
writing royalty vieWpoinﬁs.

I have had an opportunity to investigate the
title to each tract surrounding thils tract except one,

and find a substantial variation in royalty and minarai

ownership. As obviously each working 1nterest omer wants

to produce his fair share of the oil¢~




He is prompted inq£hat;desire by an 6bliggtion to
his wnderlying mineral owners to appropriately develop
and to protect the lands against drainage. -

Now, I have assumed from thisl§6pgisgion's handling
of the South Adena spacing that a rigld -wpecification
of the location of a particular well’proﬁptly results in
difficultiss for the Commission, for the operators, and
inequities between them, and these serious correlative
rights problems, partlcularly where we are near the edge
of a field or in an area where prior exceptions have been
granted.

The action of the Commission in the South Adena
area in permitting a well to be drilled in that location on
the 40, 330 feet from the boundary line and not less than
1,320 feet from another well drilled by the same operator
appears to me a significant‘step forward In solving the
problem, at least with respect to working-interest bparators.

I anticipate that there will still be problems
unsolved with respect to diverse royalty owners across
those lease lines.

Mr. Garber has testified thaq‘the Adena fleld 1is
a combination of solutlion gas and gas ca§ drive field; that
the expanding gas cap will in time force substantial quén-
titles of oll to the north and northwest, forecing oil from
beneath the Applicant's land to wells which will Be produced

down structure by wells on land to the north.




He has also testified that wells drilled on the pre-
seribed southeast location wéuld probably ba completed as
wells with a higher gas-o0ll ratio thahlﬁelis completed on
the northwest locations, with a consequent less efficient
use of the expanding gas cap and the enefgy in it. Also,
that the expanding gas cap would still convert to gas wells,
wells on the southeast location. The get result being that
wells drilled on the southeast locations here will réquire
more energy, mare gas cap energy to produce the same quantity
of oll then will wells on the northwe st location. _

If you will refer to the map where the proposed--
where Applicant's Glenn No. 3 has been asked for in the south-
west, or southeast of Section 32, 1t is apparent from look-
ing at the map that drilling a well on the prescribed south-
east location would result in very close spacing to the wells
southwest amd northwest. The net result of that would be %o
leave in the center of that 320 acre-tract a rectangular
80-acre patch on which there is no well whatsoever. And
the Commission's own determination that 40 acres 13 the
appropriate spacing situation seems tb me to require that-
the application as to the southweét of the southeast quérter
be granted as a matter of course, taking into consideration
all of the arguments which we have heard here this morning.

The application for the exception on the northeast

of the southeast quarter does present a more difficult
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problem to the Commission. It is equally obvious, however,
that requiring a well to be drilled on the southeasf location
would leave on applicant's land a substagtial area of proven
oil lands which would not be drained effectiﬁely by the
well for applicant's benefit. And considering the impact
of the expanding gas cap, the effects of the existing
pressure gradlent, and the effects of gravity, it is quite
apparent that substantial drainage loss would be suffered
to wells located to the North.

It is unfortunate that,thainér%h half of Section
32 1s nearly surroﬁnded bj ﬁeils which are drilled at
close proximity to the land. The existence of those has
been granted by the Commission for good and sufficient
reason, and I think our attention ought to be directed morse
specifically to these two 40-acre tracts which we have
in common here, which are offsetting each other, with a
serious dralnage problem in one direction, and no saubstantial
opportunity to recover that, to offset that drainage by a
well on & southeast location. ' |

I gather from Mr. Garber's testimmy that even a
well on the northwest location might not sufficiently or
equally offset the drainage loss which would be sif fered
to wells to the north, because all of the forces pushing
the 0l1l are goling agalnst 1it.

I believe 1% 13 c¢lear from the record--from
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Applicant's handling of its existing high gas-oil ratio
well, that 1t has acted as a splendld operator and will con-
tinue to do sv. Its cooperation with the Adena Field Engln-
eering and Geological Committees further't'élhd to show that.
I think it is quite clear that the granting of
both of these exceptions will much more ténd to carry out
the underlying policy of the Commission with respesct to
spacing than it will toconfuse it or alter it. Because
it is in an area in which it is swrounded on three sides
by wells which are on existing northwest locations, I think
both exceptions should be granted. e
Does the Commission have any other question of

our witnesas, or the engineer? | |

CHATRMAN DOWNING: Do you h&ve--

MR, STOCKMAR: If you have any question--

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: You gentlemen that just came in--
are you interested in this pending case, the Number 26,
Adena spacing order.

UNTDENTIFIED VWOICE: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: If you are interested, will yoﬁ glve
your names to the stenographsr. Apparently you are not.

MR. STOCKMAR: They are on the other one, dJudgse.

CHATRMAN DOWNING: Does anyone wish to examine this
witness?

MR, STOCKMAR: Before we do that, I would 1like to intro-

duce in evidence a letter from McElroy Ranch Gorrpahy to the
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Applicant, McElroy approving and recommending the granting
of the application. A similar letter from Harold Carmack,
an adjoinirng owner. And I would like to haw the record
show that the Commission has received from Gem 0il Company
and V. H. Simmons a letter of May 25,:;954, making the sams
recanmendation.

CHATIRMAN DOWNING: I was golng to ask-~how about the
other ad joining owneré? |

MR. STOCKMAR: We do not have-=

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Who are they? - &

MR. STOCKMAR: We do nof have VJ:‘-ecommendations from them
that the application be approved here, but the extent to
which there 1s any contest over 1t wi 11 have to develop here.

CEAIRMAN DOWNING: 1If there 1s no objection, those will
be filed as exhibits C, D, and E.

COMMISSIONER VAN TUYL: On the structﬁre contour map
accompanying your appllcatilon, there is shown by means of a
dotted line the supposed gas-oll contact in the Adena Field,
Do you mean to imply that there is such a definite boundary
as indicated on this map?

MR. GARBER: Oh, no, dir, We certainly don't intend to
Imply that there is a definite foot there that we can pin
the gas-oll contact on. We lmow from experience that there
is a transition zone there. But the factual data presented
by the Engineering Committess and supperted by work done f”!

-
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by the Commission has established that as a point to be recog-

nized as the gas-o0il contact, tut by no means is it an
exact foot. There is a transition zome there for sure.

COMMISSIONER VAN TUYL: Rather wide zone, isn't 1t%

MR. GARBER: The exact wldth of the zme has not been
determined absolutsly conclusively. They are in the middle
of a study now to determine the magnitude of such things as
that, but the factual data presented here to the Commission
on May 6 did pick that 10 minus 1060 as the approximate
ges-01l contact on a 1ine that we can consider as the gas-
0il contact.

MR. STOCKMAR: Mr. Garber, it 1s not a vertical line
separating the gas from the oil? '

MR. GARBER: No.

MR. STOCKMAR: You understand it to be the wsstern
1imits of the area in which an increasingly--in which the
0il zone begins %to thin out and the gas section begins to
take over more of the formation?

MR, GARBER: That is correct. It 1s definitely not a
vertlical line. It 1is a structure line.

COMMISSIONER VAN TUYL: The gas cap, as a matter of
fact, overlaps the oll zone%?

MR. GARBER: That is correct,

COMMISSIONER VAN TUYL: Two or three miles, Or=-

MR. GARBER: The exact extert hasn't been determined
which the gas overlaps the oil zone. On the eastern flank
of the field there it overlaps the field substantiaslly.

- 18 -




The ratio of the gas cap to the o0il zone is a 4 to 1, which
is a substantial gas cap.
COMMISSIONER VAN TUYL: Thank you.

CROSS EXAMINATION,
BY MR. GENGLER: B

@ Mr. Garber, I belleve you stated that the present
gas-0il ratio of the No. 1 Glenn is apprrroximately 860 to 1%

A We filed that information with Mr. Jersin, and that
wor k-over was approved; that is carrect.

@ That is the fact?

A That is corrsct.

Q@ And that is well within the limitation set by the
Commission at this tlme, isn't it-~the arder of the Commission,
1200 to 1%

A That is correct. However it is sabove the solution
gas-0ll ratio as determined by f1luid analysis fram the
reservolr,

Q@ In your opinion, and with the facts before ths
Commisslon at this time, and your knowledge, do you believe
that your Glenn No. 1 is an economic well? And by that I
mean, that it will produce oll and gas in sufficlent quan-~
tities, paying quantities? |

A Well, let me say this: the well had to be re-worked
after it was initially_cbmpleted. We went below the gas-o0il
conbact and we know that six feet below the determined s
gas-oll contact the well was producing with a ratio of |

approximately 8,000 to 1, which is extremely high, and




evidence that the well 1s p’roducing gas cap gas.

Q@ How much oil is being produced from that well at
this time ?

A The well is now producing the field allowable of
approximately 100 to 125 barrels a day.

Q@ Are you acquainted with the recent well complsted
by the, I believe, Carmack and Crawford line. I believe .
the location would be the northwest quarter of the saithwe st
and northwest of 327

A I am,

Q@ Thirty-thres?

A I am scquainted with the well to the extent that I
have sesn some iInformation on 1t. I have not made a study
of the well, but I am--I have a working knowledge and
acquaintance with it.

Q@ What lmowledge do you have of that well?

A Well, I belleve that my knowledge that the well was
completed low to som of the of fsetting wells there which -
extends a known 10, or trend of a low in the extreme north
part of that lease up there.

Q Would you consider with your knowledge at the presen t
time that that well 1s a--would be an economic we 117

A Well, that would be Vhard to say. It will dependron
the rate of gas cap encroachment into that zone. Howsver
it is down dipped, and substantial ly down-dipped fram the
exposed tops of the well, The down dip wells would probably

- 20 -
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Q@ Other than the gas cap drive and with the informatlon

make bebtter wel ls.

regarding thse Glenn No. 1, and the recent well complseted by
Camack and Crawford, what is your opinioﬁ as to a well
drilled in the southeast location of ths~ﬂcrtheast, south-
east corner of the northeast quarter of the sout heast quarter
of Section 32, which would be the regular location for that
particular quarter quarter of a Section of land?

A As we testified, we initlally developed that sec-
tion, that quarter section in the northwest qgarter of
those quarter quarters. A4nd to follow our pattern and to
take advantage of our structure, we drilled that on selsmlc
Iinformation which has proved very substantially correct.

We determined that it was necessary to drill an
economlic well in the northwest quarter of that gquarter quarter.

Q Would the well in the southeast location be an
economic well?

A Tt would be hard to determine. It would not be asr
good a well, nor would it be as efficient a well as a well--
further down-drainage well would. It would produce oil
possibly, but it would penetrate the gas zone, as we have
testified, and would produce gas cap gas, in all probability.

@ Now, assuming that you will géﬁ-—I mean in the
northwe st quarter would be your best location, that 1ﬁ itself -
does not mean that a very satisfactory location might not be

wlthin your northwest location that you are requesting,




-
and the southesst corner, which is the present pattern? -

A Would you rephrase that, please?®

Q In other words, I can see that in between the regular
location as fixed by the Commission at this time, and the
location that you are requesting, & well between those two
locations might very well be a most satisfactory well?

A Well, now, if you will look at your structural
contour mep, there, which‘Mr, Van Tuyl just referred to,
that well that we propoéé 1s just beyond the gas transition
zone and just_beyond the gas cap zone, and any well that
would be gouth or east of that location would penetrate
the gas cep.

Q@ This informetion that you submitted was formulated
at your meeting, or presented on May 6, would you not now
change your opinion as to where the line should be drawn in
light of the recent Carmack well which has been drilled
subsequent to your map?

A Again, if you will notice, we haw a controi point
there between the Carmack well.and our well, which shows
that there probably will not be much difference in the
structural contours as we now have them in our section of
the fleld. It will definitely change it to the ﬁorth, but
the control point is between us and the new well,

MR. GENGLER: I don't believe at this time that it is
necessary to make any arguments as to the law m that and

what we belisve the action means, until after we present
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our witnesses--in answer to any argument that was presented
before.

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Is there anf more testimony?

MR. STOCEMAR: T may have misunderstood. But did
Mr, Gengler ask concerning & center 40 location, is that
right?

MR. GARBER: He asked me a location between our pro-
posed location and the southeast guarter quarter location
there.

MR. STOCKMAR: Q If such a well were drilled, that
would seriously disrupt any future consideration of 20-acre
spacing, would it not?

A That 1s correct. However, as I pointed out, the
locatim as we have pictured it there would be beyond the
gas cap, which 1s our interest to drill beyond the gas cap
and avoid penetrating it if possible.

Q@ Should our usual anélysis of the actual locatibn of
the edge o the gas-o0il contact be in error and that you
actually do penetrate the gas cap, 1s it not trﬁe thatwthe
further northwest that you are permitted to drill the more
effective completion of the well you could make, one of the
terms of saving gas cap energy?

A That is correct.

MR, STOCKMAR: That is all I have.

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Any further questions--any one in the

audience. You are excused. Any further testimony?

e e SRR L a0 el R sl s BT BTV




MR, GENGLER: I would like to present Mr. Baumgsartner

a3 a witness,

FRANKLIN W. BAUMGARTNER,
called as a witness in his own behalf, and in behalf
of Mr. W. H. Gaddis, having been first duly sworn, upon
his oath testifled as followa: -
DIRECT EXAMINATIOR,
BY MR. GENGLER:

Q@ Will you please state your name?

A I am Frank Baumgartner and 1 am'with myself and
Mr. Gaddis.

Q What 1s your name?

A Pranklin Baumgariner,

Q What is youf occupation?

A I am a geologist,

7 Q@ Do you have an interest in the north half of
Section 32, Two North,'Fifty-seven West?

& Yes, T do.

Q@ And for the purposesa of this hearing, sre you
contesting the applications as made by the United
States Smelting, Refining and Mining Company?

A 1 am, |

@ Are you fully acqueinted with the particular
area in which the application has been flled for the

variations?
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Q@ And you have heard the testimony of Mr. Garber

A I am,

Just glven?

A Yes, sir,.

Q@ Now in connection with the gas cép drive, and
as thé facts are known at the present time, whgt is
your opinion as to the gas cap drive insofar as it may
affect the oil which is now in and under the southeast
quarter of Sectlon 32, and particularly with reference
to the application for variation froﬁ the southeast
corner location?

A Well, the way I feel about that ias that it has

been generally determined that we do have a gas solution

drive in the field. However, I don't think that there
is--well, the gas cap in that particular area is going
to affect the drilling of a very economic oil well., I
bellieve that we shall have poasibly ten féet of oil
sand in that particular area with a gas cap above your
o1l column. In all of our Glenn Welsh wells to the
northeast we had, oh, approximately four to slx feet

of ges 1n the core, on each one of those wells, but we

were able to complete the wells and operate them econom-

ically.
I would like to make one more statement there

in regard to the Howard Glenn No.l, drilled by Chittim
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and Allardyce that bas a gas-oll ratio now I believe of
860 to 1. Well, that possibly and probably is due to
the fact that you would have a gas qoning there to beglin
with, and 1f the well had been completed right in the
first place, you would have a much lower gas-oll ratio,
which is true, v

I happened to be there-when the core wes,
pulled out there, and there was quite a'mishandling of
the core; ao, consequently, when they came to complete
the well-~they completed in the wrong zone in the firat
place. Then we had to go back and re-complete the well
in the right zone, in the proper place. |

So, consequently, there was quite a gas coning
there which lasted for several ﬁonths, and it will take.
qQuite a2 while for this reservoir to sdjust 1ltself to
where 1t should be,

Now, as to the proposed location in the south;_
east where the application should be--could I borrow
that map for a moment?

MR. GENGLER: Yes.

MR. BAUMGARTNER: I can hold the map up so that
every one can see, There 1s the Chittim Allardyce well,
and there 1s the proposed -- or the proposed location

1s up here. But if we look and see where the well should

- 26 =




= T

be drilled in the socutheast, we find that it 1a in the
seme relative place structurally as the Chittim Allardyce
well, which is located in the northwest. Therefore, it
would be economically feasible to drill a well there,

an economic o1l well, bacauselI_don't see in any way
where 1t would be affected by a gasrcap encroachment
there,

r Q@ Is tﬁat also structurally located--how is 1%
structurally located in connection with the recent well
drilled by Carmack and Crawford in Section 332

A Well, it is located structurally abouf five feet
higher, but that in any way would not affect this well.
Incideﬁtally, the Carmack well that was drilled up here
shows no sign of having any gas cap or any gas'ehbréadhéri'
ment, It was purely an oll well. |

Q@ In connection with Mr. Garber's statements as to -
the drainage or the mlgration, we will séy, of oil frém
the aouth half of Sectlon 32 to the north half of Section
32, what would you say in regard to that?

A I don't see where it would be possible, a great
migration of oll from the south to the north, because
you would not dip.

Q Now those wells are--say, the wells on the

north haelf of Ssection 32 have all bsen drilled in the
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southeast corner pursuant to the order of the Commission?

A That is right. | |

Q@ And then in your ginion and the?knowlgdge of the
facts from your personal knowledge of the facta of the
csnditions in the field, wilth the evidence tendered by
the various parties and submltted to the Commission,
what is your opinion as to the insguities or unregsonable-
ness in requiring the Applicant to drill in the regular
location? R

A i can't see any objectidn at all to havfng-the
Applicant's conform to the 40-acre spacing pattern as
outlined by the 01l and Gas Commission on January 19,

I belleve, something like that,

@ In your opinioh,'wo;id the applicant in drilling
in the regular location recover hia fair share of ths
oil in and under the lands?

A Yes, I should think posaibly even 1ln the long
run~=if they unitize, and they have re-pressured--he
would probably get a little more of his share if hé were
a little more up dip.

MR. GENGLER: That is all.

CROSS EXAMINATION,
BY MR, STOCKMAR:
Q@ Mr. Baumgasrtner, are you arguilng for 20-acre

spacing in this fleld? *
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Q@ You are argulng economlca with respect to

& No, I sure am not,

particular wells?

A Thet 1s right.

Q@ And you are saying that simply because we can
have an economically feasible well on the particular
spacing that we have now, that we should be required
to drill there on that instead of what we have sought.

A You haven't proved to me that it is a better
locatlon. I don't think you have proved 1t to anybody
else either, except that you are just stating the
facts. gy

Q@ Mr. Gengler didplt at;empt to qualify you as
any particular type of ﬁitp&ss here;'I gather; though;
that you have had substantial experience with respect
to the comp;gtion of wells?

A Well, not--I have seen an awful lot of them
completed,

Q Sufficient to criticize the handling of the
completion of Glenn No.l.

A Well, I didn't criticize the completion. I
think the completion was done according to Hoyle., BHow=-
ever, I think the cores ﬁere mixed up at the time the

core was laid on the floor, there was a--well, slight
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panic at the time and cores were golng back in the wrong

place., When they came to the perforation it was per-
forated in the wrong zone as has been shown by the
results of the re-completion.

Q@ You say there was evidence of coning of gas
into the oil zone in that well?

A Yes,

Q@ On what do you base your opinibn? What evidence
was there that gave rise to your conclusion?

A They did--they were on the border bétween the
gas and the oll, actually, and it initlally flowed oil;
however, 1t went to gas.

Q@ Is that an indication that there iz good permes-
bility in the area?

A Sure. Yes. Gas would take over from oil énywaf.

Q@ In any location, then, whether or not your well
is completed in the gas cap area? .

A Yes,

@ And in good permeability, you would eipect
coning?

-A Well, that all depends on how fast you produce
the well, and how far you get below the gas cap. If
the well is completed correctly, you shouldn't have any

trouble wlth coning.
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Q@ By completing 1t correctly do I assume that

you mean they have perforation from thaﬂbdttom up?

A Yes.,

@ As apparently this particular well has been re-
comple ted? _ ‘

A That is right. I have no fault to find with
the completion of the well at all, I say 1t was a
mistake initially- when they did come to perforate the
well,

Q Without going back into the record here, I
would like to have again fro@ you the statement that
there would be no drainage from south to north in
this area because the lands to the north are down dip? .

A Yes. |

Q Would you clarify that?

A Well, actually, first 6f all, you are worried
about a gas solution drive or the gas taking ovef from
the oil. So when you 38y thét you admlt that the gas
is following the oil from the east down into the wella=-=-
right? And when the oll has gone, gradually the gasl
will take over.

Q@ I tried to keep from testifying this time.

4 Isn't that right?

@ I think Mr. Garber stated that 1t is a comblne-
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tion solution gas and gas cap drive,

A Yeas. _

Q@ And that the Joint effects of both as far as
will be felt-- |

A Yes,

Q That the effect of the gas cap expansion will
be to drive oll ashead of 1t., I gather that it will
expand up, carefully controlled on a fairly uniform
front, generally parallel to the existing gas-oll
contact line?

A I mean structurally our northeast of 32 and
your aoutheast of 32 are related structurally. I
can't see where there 1is going to be a great amount
of drainage 1f we go by that map that I had for the
Adena Committes. Do you have that map again.

Q@ What does this map purport to show?

A Prepared by the Lion 01l Company and the Adena
Committese for unitization.

Q@ What is it, an isopach?

A No. Structural contouf mep. I belleve
Mr. Garber 1s famillar with this map. _Anyway, this
18 the north half of Sé. This would be the north half
of 32 where we have our poéitions, and this 1s ﬁhe

south half where thls smelting and refining is located.
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And, structurally, this 1s a nose that dips to the

northwest; and if 1t dips to the northwest-;fhat is
what your selsmic indicates, ish!t it,Hwhét_you drill
on--structure nose dipping to the northwest. If 1
you will notlce now, both of theserare;;océted almost
structurally in the seme position, Se T canft see--
and I think everyone that knows anything about such
things here would agree that there couldn't be too
much drainage in such a circumstance.

Q@ Yhat 1s the meaning of the hatch around that
particular elevation?

A That particular well was about 20 feet lower,
or 15 feet lower than the other wells in the area.

Q Actually you have a aubstantiallj lowsr éfea
there? .

A In that one partlicular place, yes.

Q@ That is right m,the'{' middle of the area, 18
1t not? |

A Yo, it is up to the north.

Q From this map looking at the northeast quarter,
southeast guarter, only, as opposed to the southeast
quarter of the northeast'quarter whach has the "J!
Sand, which lies structurally higher?l

A The northeast quarter of the southeast quarter.




Q Getting back to this business of no drainage

-

because it is up dip--

A Actuslly we don't even know because there
hasn't been a well drilled there. That 1s only a
phenbmenon that we can lmagine becguse of the structure
contours,

Q@ To my mind, from your stateméﬁt ;hat there would
be no drainage from south to north becausé the north
lines were down dip, that oil will ffavei up hilil?
| No, but because you have thls gas cap--

That the gas cap--

= O P

Forces the oll down.

@ You say that the gas cap will force the oil
down structure? _

| A It is fight at the present time, yes.

Q And gravity will assist ln forcing the oll down
atructure? :

A That is right, becaﬁse you have greater pressure
on the east then you do on the west. |

Q@ Do you agree that gas will be=-cll will be -
forced from an area of high pressure to an area of low
pressure?

A Yea.

Q@ You are acQuainted with the factual data of the

o B




1sopach map submltted here?

A Yes.

Q

Are you contesting both of our locatlons, or

slmply the one?

A

I am contesting both of the locations because

I don't think either of them ought to be off pattern,

and according to this map I can see no reason why a

woll drilled in the southeasat here wouldé-I can't see

where you would hurt anything. In fact, you are even

better atructurally located than Glenn Well No. 3.

Q

Was our Glenn No.,l drilled prior to any of

your wells?

A

Q
A

Q

This well here? .
Yes?
Yes.

You think we should be penslized for having

pioneered the area and for not having selected & south-

east locatlion?

A

I don't think this is 4n any way belng penalized;

drilling in the southeast. You are going to gét just

as economical a well there as you would in the north- ;

wost.

Q

He showed that the map shows that there will be

a rectangular 80-acre area squarely in the center of
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our leases.

A Yes. 7

Q Where there will be no well drilled. Do you
consider that the other wells will effectively drain
all this area? '

A I surely do. I think the permeability 1s
good. That is why at the present time they are not
on 20-acre locations.

Q@ Then possibly 40-acre spacing is too close?

A Poasslbly. . '

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Is that all? Are there any
other witnesses? |

MR. GENGLER: Yes, Your Honor, Mr, Couch.

J. E. COUCH,
Vcalled as a witneas*in opposition to the applications
for exceptions, having been first duly aworn, upon.
his oath testifled as followas:
DIRECT EXAMINATION,
BY MR. GENGLER:
Q Will you please state your name?
A J. E, Couch. |
CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Is it cumulative, or different?
MR, GENGLER; Just a little bit different, Judge.

Q@ What is your occupation?

-:55 P




A I am an advisor to Mr, Gaddls on operating
problems. |

Q@ Profeasionally, what is your background?

A I am an enginesr by training and experiences,

€@ How much time have you spent ;h the oll fields
as an engineer?. |

A Approximately 20 years,

Q@ Are you a member of the Adena Operating and
Engineering Committee?

A I am.

Q@ You have heard the teatimony of Mr. Garber,
and in connection with his interpretations of the
factual data now known ln the field, as a member of
that Committee are your conclusionas the same as his
in connection with, we will say, the gagi,drive anci 80

forth?

A The Committee 1s conducting studies now which

we hope will lead to a plan of operation of the "J"
sand of the Adena reservoir, which will be most effi-
clent and will recover the ultimate amount of oil
from that reservoir. HNow, those studles have not dis-
closed the nature of the operating method to be used

to depletion as yet. We have a temporéry condition

there due to the existence of a market for crude oll,
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and an absence of a market for natural gas, which
resulta in a gas cap beiﬁg cﬁrrentlyrﬁhe higﬁrpressure
area of the fleld, This--it 1s hopéd.our studiea will
£ind a solution for this, so that this -ga,;.-oil contact
mey be controlled. A -_f

Q@ Now, at the present time, what 15 your oplnion
a8 to the ressonableness and equltablenesa of the
Applicant's request for a variation in the drilling
pattern, with particular regard to the exception re-
quested 1n the northeast quarter of the southeast
quarter of Section 327

A It is my opinion that a well drilled in the
southeast corner of the northeast quarter of the south-
east quarter would encounter the J Sand at or about the
same struéture position as the ﬁ:eéent wéll_in.the‘north—
woest of the southeast of the southeaét. |

Q@ Is 1t your opinion that such a well would be an
economic well?

A Tt would have an equal opportunity to be that,
yes.

Q@ Do you think that the gas cap drive would
interfere or leasen the production that might be ob-
tained from such a well?

A If the gas cap expansion is not controlled
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through the operating life of the field, it could
result in a loss of recovery in that well, However,
with control of the gas-oil contact, recoveries of
the well should not be jeopardized--o0il recoveries,

MR, GENGLER: I think that is all,

CROSS EXAMINATION,
BY MR. STOCEMAR:

Q Mr. Couch,_yoqrmade some referéﬁce to a control
of the_gas 01l contact. Would you re-phrase what you
meant there? Talking in terms of no existing market
for éaa.

A Currently we have a market for crude oll in the
Adena fleld. We don't have a market for gas. We are
producing that oil, apd‘there 1s currently a differsn-
tial in pressure acroas'the,réservoir. Beyond the gas
cap area there is no ﬁithdrawal in the west edge of the :
field where the oil is produced due to those withdraw-
ala of o0ll on the west slope,

Q@ By controlling the gas-0il contact, 1t would
tend to keep it where it 1s?

A Within reasonable limits.

Q@ And tbhat, since we have a pressure gradient :

that could only be done by also producing some of the

gas from the gas cap?
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Correct.

And your well is located in the gas cap area?

= 2 b

Yes, or in the transitilon zones -

Q@ I gather, then, that you feei¥g93§ervation can
be effected by producing gasrfrom thelgag wells even
though they do not assist in the producﬁiog of any oil-=-
simply as a means of keeping the gas-oll contact within
reasonable bounds?

A T believe~--I understand that these studles that
our committee had under way were investigating the
possibllities of doing that, of accomplishing a control
of that contact. ‘

@ Is 1t a control of the contact to its exlsting
location, or the control of the expansion of the gas 7
cap that the Engineering Committee is coﬁcerned with?'_;,

A It is. |

Q Which?

A It is the control of the reservoir, and in
specifically the gaa-oll contact. In other words, we
are attempting to devise a means of operating this
reservolr efficlently--most efficiently.

Q@ Do you concur in the conclusion of the commission--r
excuse me, of the Committee--that the moat efficlent

operation 1s to produce the mosﬁ oll with the least




expenditure of reservolr energy?

A At the present time, yes. We have mede a
recomnendation to that effect to the Cpmmisaion as
of May 6. o

Q@ Of those simllarly or reaaonablj similarly
situated wells, then, which have différegt gaa-olil
ratios, what 1s to permit you to sele@tjghe well
which 1s producing the most efficiently-?

A Depending upon fhe geographic l&cation.

Q@ Do you agree that--I don't want to be--1s
a well which 1s producing at a lower gas-oll ratio
than a similarly situated well producing more effi-
ciently, that 1s, using less reservolr energy %o
produce the same amouﬁt of oil?

A It is presumed to be, yes.

Q Do you take any issue with Mr. Garber's
testimony that a well drilled in an area where the
gas cap over-lay is the thinnest‘ought to result with
appropriate completion methods in a lower gas-oil
ration well?

& No. That would be correct. It would be
expected.

Q@ Then, of these two alternate locétiona, south-

east and northwest, on the basis of the Engineering




Commlttee's information here, a location on the north-
west ought to have a lower gas-0ll ratio than a location
on the southeast?

A We would'expect--l would expect it to occupy
a lower structural positibn than the J Sand, and there-
fore might possibly have a lower gas-oill ratio,

Q Should the Cormission accepfkthe recommandﬁtion
of the Engineering Committee and permit a controlled _
expansion of the gas cé_p, which of the t;wo loc“a_'t,ion;s-, ' .
southeast or northwesat, 1f there wers a well ;n each,
would reflect the higher gas-o0ll ratios first?

A It 1s likely that the well af the higﬁer gtruc-
tural position would.

Q The southeast location?

A Yes, |

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Any other questions?

MR. GENGLER: @ I want to clarify one thing, that
is as to both of these locations--the one in the south-
east which is the regular lbcation, and the one in the
northweat, which 1s being fequested--thé gas=-0ll ratilo
in your opinion would it be within the iimitations as’
fixed by thelcommission at this time? In other words,
within the 1200 to one?

A At which 1ocatiron?

Q Either one or both?




A I believe so, yes.

Q Mr, Stockmar was bringing out the fact that
one would be lower than the other, but both would be
within the limlitations fixed by the Cormlssion?

A Correct, |

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Any other questions? I want
to ask one guestion,

Q@ What do you think of a-rule and general applica-
tion=-~gubject, of course, to the right to change under the
statute--of a rule of one well on each 40 acres, clte to
be selected by the operator, but a distance of 660 feet
from any line? |

COMMISSIONER VOLK: 330 feet, Judge?

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: 330 feet from the outer boundary
and 1,320 feet from any well? |

' MR. COUCH: I would like to give that some thought -
before I answer that gquestion. I wouldn't care to
answer that extemporaneously?

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Any other questions?

MR. BRUCE ROLL: May I answer that queétion. I
believe that a spacing location for 40-acre spacing with
a well located 330 feet from any lease line is not any
efficient well apacing. It is no spacling pattern whatso~
ever,

MR. GARBER: I would like to say something. In
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Texas they have found it very satiafactory to ba§e the
spacing of wells on diatances from léaserlines and
minimum distances from wells, and wi#ﬁﬁiﬁe‘great numper
of wells down there it has worked out:véry aatisfactorily.

In some locations, however, down there, it is as we have

here, there are requesta for exceptions to.those loca-
tions, but as we can see here, these locations were not

laid out on a quarter-guarter section pattern, and some
tolerance should be given to the locatibn of the well
with respect to footage dimensions rather thén“a square
block of 10 or 40 or 20 acres, there, and set it in the
center of it.

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Other questions?

MR, BAUMGARTNER: I would like to say one more thing:
I am not in favor of that 330 feet from & lease llne
either, I think that ﬁeeing that the Adena Fleld was
laid out on 40-acre spacing that as far as we can, that
everyoﬁe should possibly try to ablde by that. At the
same time 1t has been amply demonstrated today that a
well 1in the southeast of the northeast of the southeast
would still be within the limits of the ges-oil ratio

which has been eatablished by the 011 and Gas Commission,

as 1200 to one. In fact, I think you will find that when

the well 13 completed it will probably be much leas--the




gas-oil ratio will probably be much less than the
Chittim Allardyce well, due to the fact that the gas
coning which I mentioned earlier in_théifestimony.

I would just like to say that that would in no way
affect the gas reservolr or operation or pperating
economically or anything like that.

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Any further testimony? Do you
wish to teatify?

MR._HOWARDVGLENN: As a mineral owner.,

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Do you want to make-=

MR, GLENN: I just want to meke a speech, is all,
I have no argument with either one of these operators.
I call them both mine because they have leases for me

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: What is your interest in the |
matter? _ _ | .

MR. GLENN: The-producfion in there, The minefal-
owner in there, Your Honor. I am the land owner. On
this one quafter we have 1n¥quesﬁion‘thsre i1s two wellé,
with the discovery well on it, and they all started off
with northwest locatlons in there. You can follow by

your map in there. They are northwest locations in

there even when you went over into the northeast quarter o

to the west, there was one northwest location granted
in thet. And the Simmons well in five was the north-

west location-- the McElroy Ranch well was a northyest
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location; there were two other 1ocationg granted in
the northwest--northwest locations in the south half
of 33, And 1f we connect these back and go back to
the pattern, that 1s all surrounded with northwest
locations, excepting to the one pattern to the north
in there. When that was dug that was the second well,
the No.l;-Glenn Biddie well was dug on a southeast
location, presumably to try to get as ciose to this
gas well, in case 1t happéned to be small, and then
since that the pattern has come in and went on soughe
east locatlions., And to be 6n the one quarter of the
southeast gquarter of the quarter in question, from a
mineral owner, I have 14z, and to the West in there

I have 8%. _

So, from that one reason; and then from_a
drainage standpoint, and like has been mentloned, that.
triangle, I would like to see you go ahead and finiah
that one quarter, being it was started that way, and
all of the other locations to the east and in there
and to the South, and I would like to see thaf in there
but not leaving that big hole out in the middle in there
from a depletion or a dralnage standpoint.

So, I guess that 1s the end of my speech, I

think.
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CHATRMAN DOWNING: Thank jou very much,

MR. BAUMGARTNER: Your Honor. I woald like to
bring to the Commission's attention, and also to
Mr. Glenn's attention one fact. And that is that these
northwest locations, with the exceptlon of the discovery
wells were all granted because they were known to be with-
in the gas cap completely, and one of them 1t was found,
the Simmons well, also in the gas cap, and it was a pro-
ducing oil well.

Another thing now 1a that these permeabilities

that have been present and are eventual in Section 32
on the basls of 40-acre spacing that would completely
drain all the area around. I mean, there hasn't been
any type of permeabllities, or low permeabilities in
the area to sufficiently warrant Z20-acre épacing.lJ_

.. Another thing I would like to bring to, K -
Commission's attentlon is the fact that all of these
lstters 'of agreeing to this exception in this nortﬁwést :
location have been from previous applicants for the north-
weat location.

CHAIRMAN DOWﬁING: Any othgr teatimony?
MR. BRUCE ROLL: Lion 0il Company. |
CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Whom do you represent?

MR. ROLL: Lion 0il Company.




CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Do you want to be sworn?

MR. ROLL: Lion 0il Company objects to thié re-
quest for an exception to the established apacing
patterns. Several months ago a pattern wéé established
for the Adena Fleld which it was felt woﬁld efficientlyf
drain the J Sand reservoir. The majority of the opera-
tors aince then have complied to this spaclng pattern
and drilled thelr wells according to the rules of the
0il and Gas Commission. |

Numerous instances have passed whereby Llon
0il Company, as well a3 other operatofs, could have
completed better wells and wells with lower gas-oil
ratios had they been drilled on a different location
from the established pattern. In view of the fact that
there 1s & pattern for the fleld and that the majority
of the operators haye: not teken advantage of the
knowledge gailned to drill better wells with lower ratios,
I would 1like to state that Lion 011 Company wishes the
Commission would reject this application.

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Anything furtyer?

MR. GLENN: I would like to make an answer to the
gentlemén's question in there, that he has--I don't
know why he should come down in our territory and object.

The closest leass production he has ls within one-half
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a mile in there, and I don't see why he should come
down and start to dictating or testifying to how we
should run our pattern down there. We have about 7

or 8 different operators in there and I think they can--
we don't come up and join in on their business.

CHATIERMAN DOWNING: You are from Texas,

MR. ROLL: I believe the spacing pattern was
established for the Adena Field and not on a lease
basis.

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: Any further testimony?

MR, STOCKMAR: It is the custom in the trade, I
understand th‘at the plaintiff ought to get the last
word. T will make it very brief. It is apparent here--

MR. DOWNING: Has everybody else been heard, now,
a0 that when you are through;;we can tgke 1t?

MR. STOCEMAR: It is apparent here that our pio-
neering in the field and then our subsequent cqnformation
to the spacing order is the real cause for this, aﬁd'for
these serious gaps in our property that are not being
drilled for our benefit. And I think Mr. Glenn raised
a very handsome point there that the parties to the
north here moved in just as closely as they could get
to the ploneer well, and that they themselves contri-

buted substantlally to the problem which exists here.

- 49 -




: - g
1 ) :

I think that is all,

CHAIRMAN DOWNING: I want to thank you all for
your attendance and very able presentétion of this
case, gentlemen., Now, another, for ua-to try to
figure out, the next case, We will take this under

advisement and try and decide it later in the day.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF DENVER ; o8

I, C. DAVID ROHRER, do hereby certify that I
am a Certified Shorthand Reporter; that as such reporter
I wag present upon the occasion of the hearing of the
above-entitled Cause No. 26, before the 0il and Gas
Conservation Commission of the State of Colorado, on
the third day of June, 1954, at the hour of 10:00 a.m.,
State Capitol Annex, Denver, Colorado.

I do hereby further certify that I took down
in shorthand all of the testimony given and the proceed-
ings had in the above-entitled matter at the aforesaid
time and place; that I caused my sald shorthand notes
to be reduced to typewritten form, and that the fore-
going pages numbered 1 through 50, inclusive, constitute
a full, true, and correct transcript of my said shorthand

notes, so taken as aforesaid.
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C. David Rohrer,
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